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THE LAW OFFICES OF CONRAD J. BENEDETTO 
By: Conrad J. Benedetto, Esq. 
JoAnn Veltrup Diaz, Esquire 
1814 East Route 70, Suite 350 
Cherry Bill, New Jersey 00003 
Telephone: 856) 993-7033 
Facsimile: 609-522-5322 
Attorneys for Plaintiff, Jason D. Dare 

JASON D. DARE, 
Plaintiff 

Vs, 

TOWNSHIP OF HAMILTON, 
POLICE CHIEF STACY TAPPEINER, : 
SERGEANT CHRISTOPHER GEHRING : 
CAPTAIN MICHAEL PETOSKEY, 
PATROL OFFICER JAMES A. 
ESPOSITO, and JOHN/JANE DOES : 
(1-10), 
Defendants. 

SUPERIOR COURT OF NEW ,1ERSEY 
ATLANTIC COUNTY - LAW DIV. 

DOCKET NO.: 	1-1.51.-/3 

COMPLAINT 

Plaintiff, Jason D. Dare, (hereinafter "Plaintiff" or 

"Trooper Dare") brings this action against the Defendants, 

Township of Hamilton (hereinafter "HT"), Hamilton. Township 

Police Chief Stacy Tappeiner (hereinafter "Chief Tappeiner"), 

Hamilton Township Police Sergeant Christopher Gehring 

(hereinafter '''sgt Gehring"), Hamilton Township Patrol Officer 

James A. Esposito (hereinafter "PO Esposito") (collectively 

hereinafter "Defendants") following the intentional, malicious 

and deliberate violation of Plaintiff's civil Rights and in 

retaliation of Plaintiff's brother, Nicholas J. Dare's 
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complaints and allegations of retaliation, harassment and 

discrimination against his employer, Defendants Township of 

Hamilton. 

Defendants' actions against Plaintiff are in violation of 

the United States Civil Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. 56 

1983,(Deprivation of Rights), 1985 (Conspiracy) and 1986 

(Neglect to Prevent Conspiracy)(hereinafter "USCRA"); and the 

New Jersey Civil Rights Act, N.J.S.A. 10:6-2 (hereinafter 

"NJCRA"}, based on violations of the Fourth, Fifth and 

Fourteenth Amendmenw rights and State Constitution. 

PARTIES 

1. Plaintiff, Jason D. Dare ("Plaintiff"), is an individual and 

citizen of the State of New. Jersey and currently resides at 2641 

Perna Lane, Vineland, New Jersey. 

2. Plaintiff is currently and for all relevant times, a Trooper 

II of the State of New Jersey Police Department, 

3. Plaintiff, Jason D. Dare, is the brother of Patrol Officer 

Nicholas J. Dare, Sr., a former Patrol Officer of the Township 

of Hamilton Police Department ("HTPD"), who is a named party in 

litigation against Defendant Township of Hamilton relative to 

harassment, discrimination and retaliation against Nicholas J. 

Dare, Sr. in connection with his employment. 
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4. Defendant, Township of Hamilton ("HT") is a municipal entity 

with offices located at 6101 Thirteenth Street, Mays Landing, 

New Jersey 08330. 

5. Defendant, Stacy Tappeiner ("Chief Tappeiner") is the 

Township of Hamilton Chief of Police with offices located at 

6101 Thirteenth Street, Mays Landing, New Jersey 08330. 

6, Defendant, Christopher Gehring ("Sgt Gehring") is a Township 

of Hamilton Police Sergeant with offices located at 6101 

Thirteenth Street, Mays Landing, New Jersey 08330. 

7. Defendant, Captain. MichaeL Petuskey ("Capt. Petuskey") is a 

member of the Township of Hamilton Police Department with 

offices located at 6101 Thirteenth Street, Mays Landing, New 

Jersey 08330. 

8. Defendant, James A. Esposito ("PO Esposito") is a Township of 

Hamilton Police Officer with offices located at 6101 Thirteenth 

Street, Mays Landing, New Jersey 08330. 

9. At all times material hereto, Defendants acted through its 

employees of the Hamilton Township Police Department, including 

the above named, within the scope and course of their employment 

and by color of State law and pursuant to an official custom, 

policy and/or practice. 

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS 
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10. On or about December 16, 2011, Plaintiff was involved in an 

accident involving a Deer and Plaintiff's avoidance of colliding 

with the Deer, on Route 40 in Hamilton Township. 

11. By avoiding the Deer, Plaintiff's vehicle made contact with 

bushes and Plaintiff struck his head and was injured. 

12. Defendant, HTPD PO Esposito initially responded to the scene 

of the accident and was advised by Plaintiff that Plaintiff's 

head was hurting as he had struck his head while avoiding the 

deer. 

13. Defendant, HTPD PO Esposito placed Plaintiff into the back 

seat of his police car to transfer him to his home or the 

hospital and made a call on the police radio to the Hamilton 

Township Police Department advising that Plaintiff, Trooper 

Dare, had been involved in an accident. 

14. Shortly after PO Esposito radioed into the Hamilton Township 

Police Department, Defendant, HTPD Sgt Christopher Gehring, 

along with HTPD Officer Trenton Lee, and HTPD Officer L. 

Randolph appeared on the scene of the accident. 

15. HTPD Officer Rudolph upon his arrival observed Plaintiff 

seated in the back seat of Defendant PO Esposito's police 

vehicle. 

16. Defendant PO Esposito advised PO Rudolph that it was 

"Nick's brother", referring to HTPD Police Officer Nicholas J. 

Dare. 
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17. Upon arrival, Sgt Gehring promptly spoke with PO Esposito 

and instead of transporting Plaintiff home or to the hospital as 

Officer Esposito had indicated, Sgt Gehring ordered Plaintiff 

out of the police vehicle and instructed Field Sobriety Tests to 

be conducted. 

le. As instructed by Defendant Sgt Gehring, HTPD Officer Trenton 

Leo proceeded to conduct Field Sobriety tests on Plaintiff 

Trooper Dare. 

19. Defendant Sgt Gehring then ordered that Plaintiff be 

arrested and Plaintiff Trooper Dare was hand-cuffed and returned 

to the back seat of Defendant PO Esposito's patrol car. 

20. Despite the fact that Plaintiff Trooper Dare had complained 

that he hit his head and it was hurting from the motor vehicle 

accident, Defendants then arrested Plaintiff for suspected 

Driving Mile Intoxicated (DWI) (39:4-50) and took Plaintiff to 

the Police Department for processing. 

21. When Plaintiff repeatedly told Sgt Gehring that he hurt his 

head in the accident and he could not understand what was being 

said to him at the Police Station, Sgt Gehring charged Plaintiff 

was Refusal to Submit to Chemical Breath Testing (39:4-50.4). 

22. Defendant Hamilton Township Police Captain Michael Petuskey 

then contacted Municipal Court Judge H. Robert Switzler by 

telephone and requested permission to forcibly take blood from 

Plaintiff Trooper Dare at the hospital if he should not consent. 
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Judge Switzler denied HTPD Captain Petuskey's request to 

forcibly take a blood sample of Plaintiff. 

23. Despite having no witnesses to Plaintiff's driving prior to 

the accident with the deer, Defendant also charged Plaintiff 

with Careless Driving (39.4-97), 

24. Defendants then transpdrted Plaintiff to the hospital for 

injuries to his head sustained in the motor vehicle accident. 

25. As a result of the actions of Defendants and charges against 

Plaintiff, Plaintiff's employer, State of New Jersey 

Colonel/Superintendent Joseph Fuentes immediately suspended 

Plaintiff's employment as a State Trooper II, without pay and 

allowances. 

26. As a result of the actions of Defendants, Plaintiff Trooper 

Dare's employer, State of New Jersey, Colonel/Superintendent 

Joseph Fuentes issued Internal Investigation/Administrative 

Charges against Plaintiff. 

27, After months of repeated requests for discovery, a Trial was 

held in Municipal Court before Honorable H. Robert Switzler on 

July 10, 2012, in the matter of State of New Jersey v. Jason D. 

Dare, relating to the HTPD Charges brought by Defendants of DWI, 

Refusal and Careless Driving relating to the accident on 

12/16/2011. 
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28. At the conclusion of the trial, Judge Switzler found 

Plaintiff Trooper bare NOT GUILTY of the charge of Driving While 

Intoxicated (39:4-50)- 

29. At the conclusion of the trial, Judge Switzler found 

Plaintiff Trooper Dare NOT GUILTY of the Charge of Refusal to 

Submit to Chemical Breath Testing (39:4-50.4). 

30. At the conclusion of the trial, Judge Switzler found 

Plaintiff Trooper Dare NOT GUILTY of the Charge of Careless 

Driving (39:4-97). 

31. Notwithstanding the fact that Plaintiff was found NOT GUILTY 

of all charges against him, Plaintiff continues to suffer from 

injuries and damages resulting from the intentional actions of 

Defendants in violation of his Civil Rights. 

32. As a result of Plaintiff's familial relationship to HTPD 

Patrol Officer Nicholas J. pare and the pending employment 

discrimination, harassment and retaliation claims between 

Officer Nicholas Dare and Defendants, Plaintiff Trooper Dare 

was targeted and retaliated against by the Defendants, including 

on December 16, 2011, resulting in the deprivation of 

Plaintiff's civil rights as afforded by the New Jersey 

Constitution and the United states Constitution. 

33. As a result of Plaintiff's familial relationship to HTPD 

Patrol Officer Nicholas J. Dare and the pending employment 

discrimination, harassment and retaliation claims between 
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Officer Nicholas Dare and Defendants, Defendants conspired to 

deprive Plaintiff Trooper Dare of his civil rights. 

34. By their actions, Defendants neglected to prevent the 

conspiracy to deprive plaintiff and the violations of the civil 

rights of Plaintifff. 

3. As a direct and proximate result of the violation of his 

rights by Defendants, Plaintiff Trooper Dare has in the past 

incurred, and may in the future incur, a deprivation of his 

civil rights, economic damages, pain and suffering, 

embarrassment, humiliation and damage to his reputation, the 

full extent of which is not known at this time. 

36. The conduct of Defendants, as set forth above, was and is 

willful and outrageous under the circumstances and warrants the 

imposition of punitive damages against Defendants. 

COUNT I 

DEFENDANT'S VIOLATIONS OF THE 
UNITED STATES AND NEW JERSEY CIVIL RIGHTS ACTS 

37. Plaintiff incorporates herein by reference paragraphs 1 

through 36 above, as though set forth in their entirety. 

38. By committing the foregoing acts against Plaintiff, 

Defendants have violated the New Jersey Civil Rights Act. 

• 
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39. By committing the above actions, Defendants have violated 

the United States Civil Rights Act as well as the ki th' 5th and 

14 th  Amendments to the U.S. constitution. 

40. There was participation by upper management of the Township 

of Hamilton Police Department, under color of State law, in 

connection with the deprivation of the rights of Plaintiff, that 

evidences the customs, patterns, practices, and procedures of 

Defendants to retaliate and violate the civil rights of 

Plaintiff. 

41. Said violations were intentional and willful and warrant the 

imposition of punitive damages. 

42. As a direct and proximate result of Defendant's violations 

of the laws, Plaintiff has sustained injuries, damages and 

losses and ries incurred attorney fees and costs. 

43. Plaintiff is new suffering and will continue to suffer 

irreparable injury and monetary damages as a result of 

Defendant's unlawful acts unless and until the Court grants the 

relief requested herein. 

RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, Jason D. Dare, respectfully requests 

that this Court enter judgment in favor of Plaintiff and against 

Defendants: 



LAW OFFICE OF CONRAD J. BENEDETTO 

By: 
,on 
Jo n 
At o r 
J 

J. Benedetto 
Veltrup Diaz 
eys for Plaintiff 
D. Dare 
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h, awarding Plaintiff such other damages as are appropriate 

under the law; and 

i.granting such other and further relief as this Court deems 

appropriate. 

DESIGNATION OF TRIAL COUNSEL 

Conrad J. Benedetto, Esquire of the Law Offices of Conrad 

J. Benedetto is hereby designated as trial counsel on behalf of 

the plaintiff herein pursuant to R4:25-4. 

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

Plaintiff Jason D. Dare hereby demands a trial by jury on 

all issues. 

CERTIFICATION 

I certify that I am not aware of this matter being the 

subject of any other pending Superior Court action and I know of 

no other parties to be joined at this time. 

Dated! 


